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Northpower Electric Power Trust
Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 March 2017

The Trustees’ role

The Trustees’ responsibilities are governed by the Trust Deed. They are required to provide for the
short and long term interests of the beneficiaries and must adhere to the requirements of the Trustee
Act 1956, the Commerce Act 1986 and the Electricity Industry Act 2010.

Trustees’ responsibilities cover: appointing Directors of Northpower Ltd and monitoring their
performance; agreeing with the Directors on Northpower’s Statement of Corporate Intent; receiving
and distributing income from Northpower Ltd by way of dividends; exercising the rights and
responsibilities of diligent shareholders; meeting with the Directors on a regular basis to consider the
performance of Northpower Ltd, and reporting annually to beneficiaries.

Seven Trustees are elected every three years by the public of the Kaipara and Whangarei Districts to
hold the shares in Northpower Ltd on behalf of the Trust’s beneficiaries, who are the electricity consumers
of the districts. The Northpower Electric Power Trust was registered in 1993.

Trustee elections

An election for Trustees was held in October/November 2016 and on 24 November 2016 the following
Trustees were elected for a 3 year term.

Angelo, Ercoli (returned)
Drake, Richard (returned)
Durham, Irene (returned)
McKenzie, Sheena (returned)
Provan, Ross (returned)
Rossiter, Bill (returned)
Yovich, Paul (elected)
Davies-Colley, Tony (retired)

Trustees appointed Erc Angelo as their Chair and Richard Drake as their Deputy Chair for 3 years until
the next election.

Distribution to consumers

A distribution of $4,493,840 ($80 per consumer) was paid to consumers in December 2016 by way of
a credit to all consumer beneficiaries electricity accounts.

Ownership review

The Ownership Review process started in February 2017 pursuant to the Trust Deed with the final step
being a series of public meetings and 89 submissions being received. Three public meetings were held
at Whangarei, Kaiwaka and Dargaville followed by a meeting to hear submissions in Whangarei in May
2017 and a final Trustee meeting, where the public could attend, on 8 June 2017. At this meeting the
Trustees decided to retain the Company shares in Trust ownership.
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Directorship

At each Annual General Meeting of Northpower Ltd, the company’s constitution requires that one third
of the Directors will retire and may seek reappointment. In July 2016, Russell Black and Nikki Davies-
Colley retired by rotation and were reappointed to the Board by the Trustees.

Phillip Hutchings and Laurence Kubiak have also been appointed to the Board in February 2017.

The selection and appointment of the Directors of Northpower is a crucial part of the Trustees’
responsibilities. Trustees seek regular external perspectives on the performance of Northpower
Directors; the results of which have confirmed that Northpower is governed by a well performing Board.

Working With Directors

In order to fulfil their statutory obligations, Trustees meet with the Board of Directors regularly
throughout the year. Matters raised include any issues that have the potential to affect the value of
Northpower Ltd. Trustees receive and review interim financial reports for discussion with Directors.
The relationship between the Chairman of the Trust and the Chairman of the Board of Directors is
vitally important to the monitoring process.

Regulatory and industry specific issues

The Trustees work closely with the Northpower Board of Directors and Management and also through
the Energy Trusts of New Zealand (ETNZ) - a body which represents the interests of electricity trusts
- in order to influence regulators to provide a clear and cost effective regime that guides quality service
to consumers without imposing unnecessary additional costs.

Trustees keep abreast of regulatory and industry issues through focus meetings with industry
representatives; regular contact with Directors on significant issues as they arise; and via Energy
Trusts of New Zealand. The Northpower Trust Chairman, Erc Angelo, is the Deputy Chair of ETNZ,
providing the benefits of even closer liaison with ETNZ generally.

Consumer contact

Trustees are always available to discuss matters involving the Electricity Industry in general and local
issues that may also affect ownership issues and responsibilities. Trustees connect with
consumer/beneficiaries whenever the opportunity arises.

All Trustees are privileged to represent the electricity consumers of Northpower Limited as beneficiaries
of the Trust, and to fulfil their responsibility to act in the capacity of shareholders of Northpower Ltd.

Financial report

The Northpower Trust 2017 financial statements are required to be consolidated with those of
Northpower Ltd. The Trust’'s results are presented in the ‘parent’ column and the ‘group’ column reflects
the results of the Company and the Trust.

BDO Northland have completed the audit of the Trust's financial report and consumers will have the opportunity to
approve the appointment of BDO Northland as the Trusts’ auditors for the year ending 31 March 2018 at the 2017
AGM on 31 July 2017.
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Northpower Electric Power Trust
Trustee’s Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2017

The Trustees present the annual report of the Northpower Electric Power Trust, incorporating the
financial statements and the independent auditors’ report, for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Principal activities
The principal business of the Trust is holding shares in Northpower Limited on behalf of the consumer
beneficiaries. The nature of the Trust's business has not changed during the year.

Trustees holding office during the year
The following Trustees held office during the year:
Ercoli Angelo
Richard Drake
Tony Davies-Colley (retired Nov “16)
Irene Durham
Ross Provan
Sheena McKenzie
William Rossiter
Paul Yovich (elected Nov '16)

Trustee remuneration and meeting fees paid were as follows

2017 2016
$ $
E A Angelo 49,510 49,011
R J Drake 35,718 34,380
A J Davies-Colley 17,917 26,500
[ M Durham 27,390 27,380
S K McKenzie 28,270 27,380
K R Provan 28,490 26,940
W E Rossiter 27,390 27,380
P M W Yovich 9,033 -
223,718 218,971

Auditor of the Trust
The appointed auditor of the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2017 is BDO Northland.

In accordance with section 101 (3) of the Electricity Industry Act 2010, a motion will be put to the
Annual Meeting of beneficiaries authorising the Trust to fix the fees and expenses of the auditors for
the ensuing year.

For and -behalf of the Board of Trustees.

%Cccﬂ

Ercoli Angsf ‘ﬁ
Chairman
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NORTHPOWER ELECTRIC POWER TRUST GROUP

Comprehensive income statement
For the Year Ended 31 March 2017

Noles Consclidated Trusl
2017 2016 2017 2018
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Continuing Operations
Revenue 5(a) 290,517 262,245 5,002 5,082
Other income 5(b) 4,521 97 - -

121,114 106,604 E .

34 102,275 95,645 E s
19,148 18,424 . .

15908 16,764 . "

Materials/supplies expenses
Employee benefils expenses
Transmission costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses 6 8,073 9,447 516 314
Finance costs 3,964 4,316 - -
Share of (profit)/ loss in assoclate (752) 368 -
Profil befora incoma lax 25,311 11,584 4,576 4,768
Income 1ax expense a (7,103} (3,577} {208) {131}
Profit for the year from continuing operations atiributable 1o the equity holders of the trust 18,208 8,017 4,368 4,637
(Loss)iprofit for the year from discontinued operations 7 {21,218) 1,191 - -
(Loss)/profil for lhe year altributable to the equity holders of the trust (3,010) 9,208 4,368 4,637
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (880) 1,172 - -
lems that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss
Net fair value gains on investmenis measured at FVTOCI 18 48 - -
Net fair value gains on derivatives designated as FVTPL attributable to changes in credit risk kE 3 - - -
Net fair revaluation gains on land and buildings - 402 - -
Income tax relating to these items 9 - 311) - -
Otlher prehensive (loss)il far the period nel of tax (B28) 1,311 - -
(3,838) 10,519 4,368 4,637

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period

The above statement should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes

BDO Northiand
ASSURANCE
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NORTHPOWER ELECTRIC POWER TRUST GROUP

Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2017

Notes Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11 2,516 2,168 475 621
Trade and olher receivabies 12 38,029 37,576 5,066 5,108
Work in progress - construction contracts 13 26,578 23,100 - -
Inventory 32 10,050 10,044 - -
Tax refund due 168 102 168 102
77,341 ‘72,990 5,709 583
Assels classified as held for sale 8 8,919 - - -
Total current assets 86,260 72,990 5,709 5,831
Non-current assets
Other financial assets 14 B83 865 - -
Invesiment in subsidianes 15 - - 35,989 35,989
Assets under construction 9,844 6,426 - -
Goodwill and inlangible assets 16 12,217 12,873 - -
Investment in assaociales 28 23,861 16,634 -
Derivative financial instruments 24 72 - -
investment property 18 735 4672 -
Property, plant and equipment 17 321,001 341,868 -
Total non-current assets 368,613 383438 35,980 35,989
Total assets 454,873 456,428 41,698 41,820
Liabilities
Currenl liabilities
Borrowings 19 - 809 - -
Trade and other payables 20 31,723 28,147 25 22
WCE closure provisions 20 10,694 - - -
Provision for tax 5,736 153 - -
Derivative financial instruments 24 - 64 - -
Employee enlitlements 31 9,355 8,505 - -
57,508 37,679 25 22
Liabilities direclly associated with assets classified as held for sale 19 1,140 - - -
Total current liabllities 58,648 37,679 25 22
Non-current liabilities
Employee entillements 31 851 932 - -
Borrowings 19 79,900 91,532 - -
Derivative financial instruments 24 2,200 3,514 - -
Deferred taxation 10 57,664 59,031 - -
Total non-current liabilities 140,615 155,000 = =
Total liabilities 199,263 192,688 25 22
Net assets 255,610 283,740 41,673 41,798
Equity
Trust Capilal 22 35,989 35,989 35,989 35,988
Assel revaluation resenve 37,885 40,072 - -
Other reserves 100 48 - -
Foreign currency transiation reserve (3,227) (2,347) - -
Relained earnings 184,863 189,978 5,684 5,809
Equity attributable to equity holders of the trust 255610 263,740 41,673 41,798
Total equity 255,610 263,740 41,673 41,798

The above statement should be read in conjunction with lhe accompanying notes.

E A Angelo ™ RID
Chairman Deputy Chairman
p

BDO Northiand
ASSURANCE PO
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NORTHPOWER ELECTRIC POWER TRUST GROUP

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 March 2017

Asset
Trust Retained Revalualn Foreign Cur
Capilal Earnings  Other Reserves  Resarye Translatn Reserve Total
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s
Consolidated
As al 1 April 2016 35,989 189,978 48 40,072 (2,347) 263,740
Loss for the period - (3,010) - - - (3,010)
Olher comprehensive income for the period - - 52 - (880) {828)
Transfer from Asset Revalualion Reserve 2,388 - (2,388) - -
Deferred Tax on above - - 201 - 201
Total comprehensive income for lhe period (622) 52 (2,187) (880) (3.637)
Transactions wilh owners in lheir capacity as owners
Distributions paid to consumer beneficiaries (4,483) - (4,493}
As at 31 March 2017 35,989 184,863 100 37,885 (3,227) 255,810
As al 1 April 2015 35,989 183 856 - 39670 13,519) 255998
Profit for the period - 9,208 - - - 9,208
Other comprehensive income for the period (311) 48 402 1,172 1,311
Total comprehensive income for the period 8,897 48 402 1,172 10,519
Transaclions with owners in their capacily as owners
Distributions paid to consumer beneficiaries (2,775) . - - (2,775)
As at 31 March 2016 35,989 189,978 48 40,072 (2,347) 263,740
Trust
As at 1 April 2016 35,989 5,809 - - 41,798
Profit for the period - 4,368 - - - 4,368
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - -
Transfer from Asset Revaluation Reserve ] E N - = 2
Deferred Tax on above - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period - 4,368 4,368
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Distributions paid lo consumer beneficiaries - (4,493) - - (4,493)
As at 31 March 2017 35,989 5,884 = - - 41,673
As al 1 April 2015 35,989 3947 - - 39,936
Profil for lhe period - 4,637 4,637
Other comprehensive income for the period - E - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period - 4,637 - - - 4,637
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Distributions paid to consumer beneficiaries - (2,775) B - - (2,775)
As at 31 March 2016 35,989 5,809 B - 41,798
The above statement shouid be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
BDO Northland
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NORTHPOWER ELECTRIC POWER TRUST GROUP
Cash Flow Statement

For the Year Ended 31 March 2017

Notes Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Operating acivilies
Receipts from customers 331,985 344,109 - .
Interest received 211 129 92 86
Dhidends received 2,461 E 5,000 3,000
Payments to suppliers (170,038) (177,083) (517) (323)
Payments 1o employaes (120,808) (129,994) - -
Interas! paid (4,164) (5.275) -
Income tax paid (2,752)  (2,563) (274) .
Net GST paid 1,262 3 - -
Net cash flows from operating activitles 23 30,150 28,323 4,301 2,763
Investing aclivities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 12,637 3275 = 2
Purchase of investment property E (735) - -
Investment in associate (8,301) (6,957) - E
Purchase of intangible assets (1,200) (1,469) - .
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {16,232)  (26,553) - -
Net cash flows used in investing actlvities {13,178) (32,439) -
Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings - 5,350 -
Repayment of borrowings (10,900) - -
Payment of finance lease liabilities {401) (301) - -
Distributions to consumers (4,447) (2,775) (4,447) (2,800)
Net cash flows (used In)ffrom financing activities {15,748) 2,274 (4,447) (2,800)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,226 (842) (146) (37)
Net foreign exchange differences (878) 490 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,168 2,521 621 658
11 2,516 2,168 475 621
The above slatement should be read in conjunction with lhe accompanying notes
ASSURANCE DO
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NORTHPOWER ELECTRIC POWER TRUST GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 March 2017

1 General information

The Norlhpower Electric Power Trusl (the Trust) was established under the lerms of the trust deed dated 29 March 1993, The Trust holds lhe entire share capilal of Northpower Limiled on behalf of
the power consumers within the network area served by Northpower Limited

Northpower Limited (the Company) is a profit oriented limited liabilily company incorporated in New Zealand. Northpower Eleclric Power Trust is a tier 1 for profit enlity

Northpower Limited is formed under the Energy Companies Act 1992 and registered under lhe Companies Act 1993. The Northpower Electric Power Trusl group consists of The Northpower
Electric Power Trusl, Northpower Limited and its subsidiaries Northpower Solutions Limited, Norihpower LFC2 Limiled, West Coasl Energy Pty Limited and Northpower Western Auslralia Pty
Limited along with an associate company Norlhpower Fibre Limited The Northpower Eleclric Power Trust is the sole shareholder of the Company

The principal activily of the Trust is to hold shares in Northpower Limited on behalf of consumer beneficiaries. The principal aclivities of Northpower Limiled are the transmission of eleciricily and
eleclricity contracting. The principal aclivities of its subsidiaries are as follows:

- Woest Coasl Energy Ply Limited is based in Westemn Australia. It operates an electricity conlracling business.

- Northpower Western Australia Ply Limited is based in Western Australia. It is an inlermediate holding company

- Northpower Solutions Limiled operates an electricily conlracting business

- Northpower LFC2 Limited has not traded for the year ended 31 March 2017 but has been established lo operate a lelecommunicalions fibre business

These financial statemenls were approved by lhe Trustees of the Trusl on 19 July 2017

2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires mar it to make jud its, estil and asst ions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management
conlinually evaluales ils judgemenls and eslimates in relation to assels, liabilities, contingenl liabililies, revenue and expenses. Management bases ils judgements and estimates on hislorical
experience and on various other factors il believes lo be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of lhe carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Estimales and underlying assumptions are regularly reviewed. Any change lo eslimales is recognised in the period if the change affects only that period, or into the
fulure period if it also affects future periods

Managemenl has idenlified the following crilical accounling policies for which significant judgemenls, eslimates, and assumptions are made. Actual results may differ from lhese estimates under
different assumptions and conditions and may materially affecl financial results or the financial position reporied in future periods.

Nature of investment in Northpower Fibre Limited
The nature of Northpower Limited's investment in Norlhpower Fibre Limiled (NFL) is not readily apparent, and requires significant judgement. Management consider thal NFL is an assaciate for the
following reasons:

- each shareholder shares in lhe risks and returns of (he arrangemenl and neither party has the power to affect those benefits or returns
- during the concession pericd neither Northpower nor Crown Fibre Holdings (CFH), another shareholder of NFL have Lhe unilateral right to make decisions regarding NFL aclivilies

- Northpower and CFH bolh have the right lo appoint two of lhe five Direclors on the NFL Board and neither is able to control lhe majority of voles of the Board

Assessment of impairment in the carrying value of Northpower Fibre Limited

In order to assess whelher lhere is any impairment in the carrying value of the investment in NFL, recoverable value must be estimated using a value-in-use discounted cash flow methodology. A
key assumption in the valuation is the forecast rate of uptake of customers connecling to the fibre broadband network. This forecast raie is highly subjective given the business is only in ils sixth
year of operation

Discounted Cash flows

Managemenl assesses whether the individual assets or grouping of relaled assels {which generate cash flows independently) are impaired by eslimating lhe future cash flows Lhat those assets are
expected to generate Assumptions such as rates of expected revenue growth or decline, expected future margins and lhe selection of an appropriate discount rate for discounting cash flow are
required

Construction contracts
The Group recognised revenue from construction contracts by applying percentage of complelion method. Percenlage of complelion is deiermined using the costi incurred compared to the total
cosl estimated for lhe completion of the contract

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with infinite lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generaling
unils, using a value in use discounled cash flow methodology, lo which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinile useful lives are allocated. The assumplions used in Lhis eslimalion of recoverable
amount and the carrying amounl of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are discussed in note 16

Allowance for impairment loss on trade receivables

The subsidiary, Northpower, maintains a provision for eslimated losses expected to arise from cuslomers being unable to make required payments, This provision takes into account known
commercial faclors impacting specific cuslomer accounts, as well as the overall profile of Northpower's debtors' portfotio. In assessing the provision, factors such as past collection hislory, the age
of receivable balances, the level of activity in cuslomer accounls, as well as general macro-economic trends, are taken into account

Estimation of useful lives of assets

The eslimation of useful lives of assets has been based on hislorical experience as well as manufacturers’ warranties for plant and equipment (for plant and equipment), lease terms (for leased
equipment) and turnover policies (for motor vehicles). In addition, the condition of the assets is assessed at least once per year and considered against lhe remaining useful life. Adjustments lo
useful life are made when considered necessary.

Assessment of impairment in the carrying value of the investment in West Coast Energy Pty Limited (WCE)
Post year end lhe WCE business will close (see note 7), however lhe Norihpower Western Australia Pty Limited group continues to be a going concern, Accordingly, Northpower Limiled must
perform an impairmenl assessment over lhe carrying value of ils investment

The recoverable valus of the investment in WCE is determined on Lhe basis of value-in-use discounted cash flow methodology. To assess impairment, management must estimate fulure cash
Mows. This entails making judgements around:

- |he expected rate of revenue growlh

- margins expected to be achieved
- capital expenditure required to support the oulcomes

- appropriale discounl rale lo apply when discounling fulure cash flows
The Directors have determined that Northpowsr's investment is [ully impaired at 31 March 2017
Long service leave and retirement leave provision

Entitlements that are payable beyond 12 monlhs, such as long service leave and retirement leave, have been calculated on an actuarial basis. The calculalions are based on Ihe likely future
entitliements' based on years of service, years lo entitlement, atlrition rates, and conlraclual entillements information and the present value of the eslimated future cash flows. Changes lo the

assumptions made in the calculation of the long service leave will result in changes to the carrying value of the provision
BDO Northland o
ASSURANCE DO
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Notes to the financial statements

Revenue recognition

Part of the nelwork charges is based on normalisation, where consumplion is eslimaled lo the end of (he billing period based on historical actual meter readings. Occasionally the meter reading
hislory dala is not consistent and subsequent adjustments are made to customers' accounls, where further charges are applied or refunds given. These adjustment amounts are not significant
compared with total nelwork revenue.

Revaluation of assets

Distribulion system assets along wilh land and buildings which are held as property, planl and equipment and investment properties are valued by an independenl valuer. The revaluation exercise
is performed every three years, the last of which was performed in March 2016

The fair value of the Group’s land and buildings is based on market values, being the price that would be received lo sell land and buildings in an orderly lransaclion between market parlicipanls at
the measuremenl dale. Changes to market conditions or assumptions made in lhe eslimalion of fair value will resull in changes to Ihe fair value of the revalued assets

Network distribution system assets are determined by using a discounled cash fllow methodology. The major inputs used in the valuation of network assets include the discount rate, projected
operational and capilal expenditure profiles, inflation and growth rate assumptions

An analysis of ihe valuation model based on the most recent revaluation performed on 31 March 2016 (see note 17) indicates thal the valuation of lhe distribution system assets is most sensitive to
movements in distribution revenue and operating expendilure

Valuation assumption

Assumption adopted Low High Valuation Impact
Dislribution revenue Per forecast increase by 5% Decrease by 5% -$13.5m/+$13.5m
Operating expenditure Per forecast Increase by 5% Decrease by 5% -$10.6m/+$10.6m

Recognised fair value

Fair value hierarchy of non-financial assets

The following table summarises the fair value measurement hierarchy of the non-financial assets that are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial stalements.

Level 2 Level 3 Total
$000s $000s $000s
Consolidated only
Investment Properties
Land 390 . 390
Buildings 345 - 345
735 - 735
Property, Plant & Equipment
System distribution assets - 273,771 273,771
Land 7,664 . 7,664
Buildings 3,034 4,199 7,233
Building infrastructure 1,609 661 2,270
12507 2755 ZO0.598
13,042 278,651 FEEC T

used to ine Jevel 2 and level 3 fair values of non financial assets

The Group obtains independent valualions for its system distribulion assets and land and buildings al leasl every three years

Valuation techniques are based on lhe hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 inputs - quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markels for idenlical assets or liabilities thal can be accessed as at the measurement date

Level 2 inpuls - inpuls olher than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly or indireclly

Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

a Statement of compliance and reporting framework

The financial statements comply with New Zealand equivalents lo Inlemalional Financial Reporting Standards ('NZ IFRS'), and other applicable Financial Reporling Standards, as appropriate for
Tier 1 for-profit enlilies They also comply with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards.

b Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis except for the revaluation of derivatives, other financial assets, distribution syslem assets, and land and buildings

The present currency is New Zealand dollars ($). All inancial informalion has been rounded lo the nearesl thousand unless otherwise siated

¢ New ting and interpr

i Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The financial statements have been prepared using accounling policies lhat are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

if Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

Standards and interpretations that have been recently issued or amended, but are not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of lhe Group's
financial slalemenls are summarised below. The Group intends lo adopt these standards when they become effective

iii Accounting standards issued but not ye! effective

- NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: NZ IFRS 15 supersedes NZ IAS 11 Construclion Conlracts, NZ IAS 18 Revenue
and all oiher related inierprefations. The core principle of NZ IFRS 15 is thal an enlity recognises revenue to depicl lhe transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitied in exchange for those
goods or services. NZ IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with early adoption permitted. Applicalion
date for the Group is 1 April 2017, The Group is currently assessing the impacl of adopling this standard

- NZIFRS 16 Leases: NZ IFRS 16 is a new standard on the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The scope of the
new slandard includes leases of all assels, wilh cerlain exceptions. A lease is defined as a confract, or parl of a contracl, thal conveys the
fight lo use an asset (the underlying assel) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. NZ IFRS 18 requires lessees to account for all
the leases under a single on-balance sheel mode! (subject to certain exemptions) in a similar way to finance leases under NZ IAS 17. NZ IFRS
16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early adoption permitted. Application date for the Group is 1 April
2019. The Group is currenlly assessing the impact of adopting this standard

BDO Northland
ASSURANCE £DO
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Notes to the financial statements

d Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statemenls of the Group comprise the financial stalements of the Trusl and olher entities under ils control (ils subsidiaries). Interests in associates are equity accounled
and are not par of the consolidaled Group

Subsidiaries are all those entilies over which the Group has conlrol. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has righls lo, variable relums from ils involvement with the enlity
and has the abilily to affect those returns through its power to direct the aclivities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consalidaled from the date on which control is transferred to lhe Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date Ihat control ceases

The financial slatements of subsidiaries are reported in the financial slalements using lhe acquisition method of consolidalion
Inlra-group balances and transaclions between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation

Inveslments in Subsidiaries held by the {rust or parent are accounted for al cost in the separale financial statements of the trusl or parenl enlity, less any impairment charges

e Foreign currency translation

i Functional and presentation cumency

Bolh Ihe functional and presentation currency of Northpower Electric Power Trusl and Northpower Limiled is New Zealand dollars ($). The Auslralian subsidiaries' funclional
currency is Australian dollars which is lranslated to the preseniation currency (see below for consolidated reporting).

ii Transactions and bafances
Transactions in foreign currencies are inilially recorded in the funclional currency by applying the exchange rales ruling al the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslaled at the rate of exchange ruling at ihe reporting
date,

Non-monelary ilems lhat are measured in terms of historical cosl in a foreign currency are lranslated using the exchange rate as at the dale
of lhe inilial translalion. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are Iranslated using the exchange rate at the date
when fair value was determined

iif Ti ion of Group companies’ functional currency to presentation cumrency
Assets and liabililies are lranslated at exchange rates prevailing at reporting date. Exchange variations resulting from the translation are
recognised in the other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency lranslation reserve in equity.

If the Auslralian subsidiary were sold, the proportionale share of exchange differences would be transferred oul of reserves and reclassified
to profit or loss in the stalement of comprehensive income

f Goods and Services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

- when lhe GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is nol recoverable from lhe laxalion authorily, in which case the GST is recognised
as part of the expense item as applicable

- receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included

- lhe nel amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to the laxalion aulhorily is included as part of receivables or payables in lhe balance sheet

The Trust is nol regislersd for GST

Cash flows relaling to lhe Trusl are included in the statement of cash flows on a GST inclusive basis because the Trust is not registered for GST. All other cash flows are included in a GST
exclusive basis

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of (he amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the laxation authorily
g Financial instrumants

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the enlity becomes a party to the contraclual provisions of the instrument

All financial instrumenls are initially recognised at the fair value of lhe consideration received/transferred less, in the case of financial assets and liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, directly altributable (ransaclion cosls. Subsequently the Group applies the following accounting policies for financial instruments:
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cosi consist of trade & other receivables, cash and equivalenls

Trade and other receivables are subsequenlly measured al amorlised cost using Lhe effective interest rale method, less an allowance for impairment Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the profil or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured al the difference belween the assets
carrying amount and the present value of eslimated fulure cash flows discounted using the effeclive inleresl rate. Financial difficulties of lhe debtor, probability that lhe debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisalion, and defaull or delinquency in paymenls (more than 90 days and without arrangement) are considered indicalors thal the receivable is impaired

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposit and other short-term highly liquid investments thal are equily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in back value Bank overdrafts are shown wilhin borrowings in currenl liabilities in lhe balance sheet

Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss
Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss consist of derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial inslrumenls are used {o manage exposure lo foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising from financing aclivilies. In accordance with the treasury policy, the Group does nol
hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Foreign currency transactions (including lhose for which forward foreign exchange contracts are held) are translated into NZ$ (the funclional currency) using the exchange rates prevailing al lhe
datas of the transachions

Derivatives are subsequently measured al their fair value al each balance dale with the resulting gain or loss recognised in the profit or loss. The Group has elected not lo apply hedge accounting

The full fair value of a loreign exchange or interesl rate derivative is classified as current if the conlracl is due for seltlemenl wilhin 12 months of balance date, otherwise foreign exchange
derivatives are classified as non-currenl
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Other financial assets

Invesiments in equily inslruments at FVTOCI (fair value lhrough olher comprehensive income) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured al fair
value wilh gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in olher comprehensive income and accumuiated in ihe investments revalualion reserve. The cumulative gain or loss will
nol be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equily invesimenls, instead, they will be translerred to retained earnings

The Group has designaled all inveslmenls in equity inslruments thal are not held for trading as FVTOCI on initial application of NZ IFRS 9
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on invesiments in debt instrumenis that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, lease receivables, amounts due
from customers under construction contracts, as well as loan commilments and financial guarantee contracts. No impairment loss is recognised for invesiment in equity instruments. The amount
of expecled credit losses is updaled al each reporting dale to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respeclive financial instrument

The Group always recognises lifelime ECL for trade receivables, amounts due from customers under construction conlracts and lease receivables. The expecled credit losses on these financial
assets are estimaled using a provision matrix based on lhe Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the deblors, general economic conditions and an
assessmenl of bolh the current as well as lhe forecast direction of conditions at the reporting dale, including time value of money where appropriale

For all olher financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credil risk since initial recognition. If, on the olher hand, lhe credil risk on lhe
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument

al an amount equal to 12 month's ECL. The assessment of whether lifelime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired al lhe reporting date or an actual defauil occurring

Lifetime ECL represenis Ihe expecled credit losses (hal will result from alt possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12 monlh ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to resull [rom default events on a financial instrument that are possible wilhin 12 months afier the reporling date

Financial liabilitles at amartised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost consist of trade and other payables and borowings

Financial liabilities al amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) melhod. Gains and losses are recognised in profil or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisalion process.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL (fair value through profit and loss) when lhe financial liabilily is 1) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combinalion to which NZ IFRS
3 applies, 2) held for trading, or 3) it is designated as al FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are siated at fair value with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in profil or loss to the extent that they are nol part of a designated hedging
relationship. However, for financial liabilities that are designated as al FVTPL, lhe amounl of change in lhe fair value of the financial liability that is altribulable lo changes in the credit risk of that
liabilily is recognised in olher comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effecls of changes in the liability's credit risk in olher comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability is recagnised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value altributable Lo a financial liability's credit
risk lhal are recognised in olher comprehensive income are not subsequenlly reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred lo retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial
liability

h Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assels and disposal groups are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amounl and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction instead of use They are not depreciated or amortised. For an assel or disposal group o be classified as held for sale it must be available for immediale sale in
its present condition and a sale musl be highly probable

j Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

At each reporting dale, the Group reviews lhe carrying amounts of ils {angible and intangible assels to determine whether there is any indicalion that those assets have suffered an impairment loss
If any such indicalion exists, the recoverable amount of Lhe asset is eslimated in order to determine the exlenl of the impairment loss (if any). Where lhe assel does nol generate cash flows lhal are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates lhe recoverable amounl of lhe cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cosls to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, lhe estimated future cash flows are discounted lo their present value using a pre-lax
discount rate thal reflects current market assessments of Ihe same time value of money and Ihe risks specilic to the asset for which the estimates of fulure cash flows have nol been adjusled.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generaling unit) is eslablished to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the comprehensive income statement immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an impairmenl loss subsequently reverses, lhe carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased lo lhe reversed estimate of its recoverable amount, bul only o lhe exlenl
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for lhe asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the comprehensive income slatement immediately, unless the relevant assel is carried at fair value, in which case the reversal of the
impairment is trealed as a revaluation increase |hrough other comprehensive income

k Leases

Northpower entities lease certain ilems of property, planl and equipmenl. The detlermination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of lhe arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assels and lhe arrangement conveys a right to use the assel, Operaling lease
payments, where the lessors effeclively retain all the risks and benefits of ownership of lhe lease terms, are included in the determination of the net surplus in equal instalments over the period of
the lease

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefils incidenlal to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at lhe inceplion of the lease al fair value of the leased
assel or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease paymenls. Lease paymenls are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rale of inleresl on lhe remaining balance of lhe liabilily. Finance charges are recognised as an expense in the comprehensive income statement

Capilalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of ihe estimaled uselul life of the asset and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that lhe Group will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease lerm

| Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligalion (legal or constructive) as a resuit of a past event, it is probabls lhal an oulflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required lo sellle lhe obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of lhe amount of the obligation

Provision for onerous contracts
Presenl obligalions arising under onerous conlracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous conlract is considered to exist where the Group has a conlracl under which lhe
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under lhe contract exceed the economic benefits expecled lo be received from the contracl
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m Cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, held in bank accounts, on-demand deposits and other highly fiquid inveslmenls with maturities lhree months or less in which the

Group invests as parl of its day-to-day cash management

Operating aclivities include all activities olher than investing and financing aclivilies. The cash inflows include all receipls from the sale of goods and services and other sources of revenue that
supporl Norlhpower's operaling activilies, Cash outflows include payments made lo employees, suppliers and for taxes

Investing activities are those activilies relating lo the acquisition and disposal of current and non-current securities and any other non-current assets

Financing activities are lhose activities relating to changes in equily and debl capital siruclure of the Group and those activilies relaling 1o the cost of servicing lhe Group's equily capital excluding
interest

4 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise trade & olher receivables, trade & other payables, borrowings, available for sale invesiments, interesl rale swaps, forward exchange contracts
and cash & cash equivalents. Financial risk management for currency and interest rate risk is carried out by the treasury function under palicies approved by the Board. The Group risk management
policy approved by the Board provides lhe basis for overall financial risk management

The Group does nol hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. All contracts have been enlered into with major credilworthy instilulions. The risk associated with ihese
transactions is the cost of replacing these agreements al the current market rales in the event of defaull by a counterparty,

Credit Risk
Credil risk is the risk hat a (hird party will defauit on its contraclual obligalion resulting in financial loss lo lhe Group

Financial instruments which polenlially subject the Group lo credit risk principally consist of cash and bank balances, short term deposits and accounls receivable. Norlhpower does nol generally
require collateral from customers

The Group places ils cash and shorl term deposils with high credit quality financial inslitutions (A1 or better), and limits Ihe proportion of credit exposure to any one inslitution in accordance with
Company policy

The Group lrades only wilh recognised, creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivabie balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result thal he Group's exposure lo bad debts is nol
significanl

There is no significant concenlration of credit risk. The maximum amount of credit risk for each class is the carrying amount in the balance sheet
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk thal lhe Trust and Group will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitmenls as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk managemenl implies maintaining sufficient

cash, the availability of funding through an adequale amount of commilled credit facilities, and the abilily to close out market posilions. Flexibility in funding is maintained by keeping commilted
credit lines available

The Group has a maximum amount thal can be drawn againsl its lending facilities of NZD$107,000,000 (2016: NZD$107,000,000). There are no restriclions on the use of the facililies
The Group also has in ptace a credit card facility with a combined credit limit over all cards issued of NZD$1,000,000 (2016: NZD$1,000,000)

The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecasl and aclual cash flow requirements and malching the majority profiles of financial assets and liabililies

The Group's objeclive is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and fiexibilily through the use of bank overdrafts and bank loans.

derivatives

Contractual maturity ysis of ial liabilities,

The table below analyses financial liabifilies (excluding derivatives) into relevant maturity groupings based on lhe remaining period at the balance date to lhe contractual maturity date. Fulure
interest payments on floating rate debt are based on the floaling rate on the instrument at the balance dale. The amounts disclosed are the coniractual undiscounled cash flows

2017 20186
<6 Mths 6-12 Mths 12¥rs 2-5Yrs <6 Mihs 6-12 Mths 1-2 Yrs 2-5 Yrs
Consolidated $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s
Trade & olher payables 22,692 - - ~ 21,968 - = -
Finance leases payable - - - - 858 - 406 407
Inleresl bearing loans - - 23,306 68,403 . 47,000 43,800
52,692 - 23,306 68,403 22,824 - 47,406 44,207
Trust
Trade & other payables 26 - - - 22 - - -
26 . = 22 -

Contractual maturity analysis of derivative financial assets (liabilities)

The table below analyses derivative financial instruments into those thal are setlled nel and those that will be setiled on a gross basis inlo lheir relevant maturity groupings based on lhe remaining
period at the balance date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed are lhe contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2017 2016
<6 Mths 6-12 Mths 1-2Y¥rs 2-5Y¥Yrs <6 Mlhs 6-12 Mihs 1-2 ¥Yrs 2-5 Yrs
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s
Group - nel seltled
Derlvalives - - 106)  (2.022) ) 158) 53 13462}
Trust - net setlled
Derivauves - - -

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities based on management's expectation

The risk implied from the values shown in the tabie above, reflecls management's expeclalion of cash oulflows. Leasing obligalions, trade payables and olher financial liabilities mainly originate
from the financing of asssts used in lhe Group's ongoing operations. To monilor lhe existing financial assets and liabililies as well as to enable an effeclive controlling of future risks, Northpower
has established comprehensive risk reporting covering its business units that reflecls expeclations of management of expected settlement of financial assets and liabilities

Fair Values
The fair value of all financial instrumenls approximales lhe carying value recorded in the balance sheet
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Fair value hierarchy disclosures
For most instrumenls recognised at fair value on lhe balance sheet, fair values are delermined according Lo lhe fallowing hierarchy:

1 Quoled market price - Financial instrumenls wilh quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets (Level 1)

2 Valuation technique using observabie inputs - Financial insiruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for idenlical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instrumenls valued using models where all significanl inpuls are
observable (Level 2),

3 Valualion techniques wilh significant non-observable inputs - Financial inslruments valued using models where one or more significant inputs
are not observabie (Level 3), The following lable summarises the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial assels and liabililies

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the periods

2017 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
Consolidated only $000s $000s $000s $000s
Financial assets
Interest rate swaps - 72 - -
Other financial assets 851 32 833 32
851 104 833 32
Financial fiabilities
Interesl rale swaps (2,200) - (3,578)
- (2,200) - (3,578)

Foreign Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due 1o changes in foreign exchange rates.

As a result of investment operations in Ausiralia, the Group's balance sheet can be affected significantly by movements in the exchange rates

The Group also has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises from sales or purchases by an operating entity in currencies other lhan the functional currency.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had the following exposure to $AUD:

2017 2016

Consolidated only
$000s $000s

Financial Assets

Cash & cash equivalenls 1,305 629
Trade & other receivables 5,126 6,898
Financial Liabilities
Trade & other payables 7,257 5473
Interest bearing loans & borrowings 1,042 1,388
Net exposure (1,868) 666
The following sensitivity analysis is based on the foreign currency risk exposures in exislence al the balance sheet date
At 31 March 2017, had the New Zealand Dollar moved, as illustrated in the table below with all other variables held constant, post
tax profit and equity would have been affected as follows:
Post Tax Profil Higher/(Lower) Equity Higher/(Lower)
2017 2016 2017 2016

$000s $000s $000s $000s
Consolidated only
NZD Slrengthen +5% 104 (35) -
NZD Weaken -5% (115) 39 -

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Group constantly analyses ils interest rate exposure. Within this
analysis consideration is given to potential renewals of existing positions, allernative financing, hedging positions and the mix of fixed and variable interest rales

The Group manages ils cost of borrowing by timiting 1he ratio of fixed to oating rate cover held. The Group uses inlerest rale swaps to manage Lhis.

Consolidaled Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
93,000 - -

Interest rate swaps 88,000

The following sensitivily analysis is based on the inleresl rate risk exposures in existence al lhe balance sheet dale

At 31 March 2017, if interest rates had moved as illustrated in the table below with all other variables held constant, post tax profit and equity would have been affected as follows:

Post Tax Profil Higher/(Lower) Equity Higher/{Lower)
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Consolidated only
+1% (100 basis poinls) 1,443 881 - -
-0.5% (50 basis points) (779) (441) - -

Based on lhe above lable lhe movemenl in profit is due mainly to the higher/lower interest cosls from variable rale debt along wilh the result of a fair value change in interesl rale swaps which are
not hedged. There would be no effecl on other components of equily.

BDO Northiand
ASSURANCE B0

Page 17



Notes to the financial statements
5 Revenue

Revenue is recognised and measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable lo the exienl il is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured

Line charges
Line charges revenue represents income generated from lhe distribution of eleclricily lo consumers. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideralion received or receivable

Line Contributions

Line conlribulion revenue represents Lhird party contributions towards the construction of distribution system assets. Revenue is recagnised in the comprehensive income slalement to reflect lhe
percentage of completion of the construclion of lhe related ilems. Conlribulions received in excess of lhose recognised in the comprehensive income statement are recognised as deferred income
in the balance sheet

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial assel and allocating the inleresl income over the relevant period
using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts eslimated future cash receipis lhrough Lhe expected life of the financial assel to the net carrying amounl of the financial
asset

Construction contracts
Where the oulcome of a construction conlracl can be estimated reliably, revenue and cosls are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at balance dale, as
measured by the proporlion lhat contract costs for work performed lo date bear to the total contract costs, except where lhis would not be represenlalive of the stage of completion, Variations in

contracl work, claims and incentive paymenls are incurred to the extent that Ihey have been agreed with the customer.

Where lhe oulcome of a construction conlract cannot be estimated reliably, conlract revenue is recognised lo the exient of contract cosis incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred

When it is probable thal lolal conlract costs will exceed total conlract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately

Farming
Revenue is recognised al lhe fair value of (he consideration received and receivable derived from lhe Group's share of milking income from the farm

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive paymenl is eslablished, which is generally when the shareholders approve lhe dividend.
Group Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
a) Revenue
Gross line revenues 69,370 68,859 -
Discount - {4,204) -
Nel line revenues 69,370 64,655 - -
Line coniribulions 2,643 1,977 - -
Conlracling work income 217,994 194,679 - -
Dividend income - 625 5,000 5.000
Interest income 211 126 92 82
Income from farming 299 183 - -
290,517 262,245 5,092 5,082
b) Other income
Net gain on foreign exchange 213 176 -
Fair valuation gain on derivative instruments 1,416 - -
Gain on sale of assels 2,499 191 -
Gain on revaluation of inveslment properties - 13 -
Renl received 85 75 -
Sundry income 308 462 -
4,521 917 - -
Revenue associated wilh discontinued activilies is disclosed in nole 7
6 Other expenses
Group Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Audilor's remuneration
- Audit of financial stalements 193 167 18 17
25 25 - -

- Audil of regulatory disclosures

Bad debts writlen off 320 43 - -
Fair valuation loss on derivative instruments - 2,905 - -
Directors' fees 430 404 - -
Trustees fees and allowances 224 219 224 219
Other lrusl expenses 274 78 274 78
Renlal and operating lease costs 6,607 5,561 - -
Research and developmenl - 45 -
8,073 9,447 516 314
Included in discontinued operations:
Audit Fees 122 75 - -
67 158 - -

Direclors Fees
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7 Discontinued operations

West Coast Energy

The Group has a number of contracts with Western Power Pty Limited (a key customer of the subsidiary West Coast Energy Pty Limited), including the Network Services Contract and the
Inspection Services Contract. The Network Services Contract has an end date of 30 June 2018 and the Inspection Services Contract has an end date of 30 June 2017. The nalure of these
contracls is that volumes and pricing are agreed with Western Power each year. During the current financial year it became apparent that the Group was unable lo make a sustainable profit from
the Network Services Contract and as a result the Directors of Northpower Limited made a decision in December 2016 nol lo re-bid for volumes, Whilst the Group was able lo generate profits from
the Inspection Services Conlract, the Directors of Narthpower Limited made a decision not to re-bid for volumes under this contract also. The Group will continue to fulfill all contractual
commitments, which are contracted volumes up until 30 June 2017, however following this decision the West Coast Energy business will then close. Closure of the business has resulted in several
restructuring provisions and lhese are outlined in note 20 in Lhese financial statements. There are also 'assets classified as held for sale’ as outlined in note 8. Trade receivables, construction
work in progress and trade payables are expected lo be realised in lhe normal course of business

The Group did decide to continue with the acoustic testing work (Foresight). This work will conlinue under Northpower Western Australia Pty Limited with the company employing one person to

manage this work

The resulls of the discontinued operations included in the profit for the year are set out below. The comparative profit from disconlinued operations have been re-presented to include those

operations classified as discontinued in the current year.

Loss for the year from discontinued operations

Group Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016

$000s $000s $000s $000s
Consolidated only
Revenue 47,143 76,624 - -
Expenses {68,361} (75,433)
(Loss)/profit before income tax {21,218) 1,191
Income tax expense - - -
(Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued operations (attributable to equily holders of the Trust) (21,218) 1,191 -
Discountinued activities include an impairmenl of Property, Plant and Equipment of $4,946k
Cash flows from discontinued operations included in the Group cash flow statement are set out below
Net cash flows from operating activities (6,310) - -
Net cash flows from investing aclivilies (281) - 5
Net cash flows from financing activities {401) B - -
Net cash flows {6,992) - ]
8 Assets classified as held for sale Group

2017 2016

$000s $000s
Consolidated only
Property, plant and equipment 4,982 -
Inyestment properties 3,937 -

8919 -

9 Taxation

Income tax expense/(benefit) comprises current and deferred tax and is calculated using rates enacted or substantively enacled at balance dates. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss unless the tax relates to items in other comprehensive income, in which case the tax is recognised as an adjuslment in other comprehensive income against the item to which it relates,

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. No deferred lax
is recognised for Lhe inilial recagnition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rales that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when Lhey reverse.

Deferred lax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right lo set off current tax assets against curent tax liabilities and when they relale to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority and when the Group inlends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Taxation
Accounting profit before income lax 25,311 12,785 4,576 4,768
At New Zealand's statutory lax rate 33% for Trust 8,353 4,219 1,510 1,573
Effect of lower tax rates in Company (28%) (1,280} (651) - -
Plus/(less) lax effect of:
- Dividends received (acciued) 1,650 990 . {660)
- Gross up of imputation credits 642 385 642 385
- Imputation credits attached to dividends received {1,944) (1,167) (1,944) (1,167)
- Non-deductible expense 695 (157) B -
- Prior period adjustment (641) {42) -
Reclassification of assets being held for sale (372) - - -
7,103 3,577 208 131
The Taxation Charge is Represented by:
- Cuirent taxalion 8,146 3,135 208 131
- Deferred taxation {30) 484 - .
- Prior period adjustment relating to current tax 123 (1,010) -
- Prior period adjustment relating to deferred tax {764) 968 - -
Reclassification of assels being held for sale (372) - -
7,103 3,577 208 131
Amounts charged or credited lo other comprehensive income
- Deferred tax on asset revaluation - (311) - -
(311) - E
33,791 28,168 - a

Imputation credits available for use in subsequent reporling periods

The Group has unrecorded lax losses relating to its Auslralian business of A$39.3m (2016: A$15 5m). These losses have not been booked as a deferred tax asset in the current year due to the

uncertainty of future laxable profils.

Page 19

BDO Northiand
ASSURANCE BDO




Notes to the financial statements

10 Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Property, Plant & Financial Employee
Equipmnt Instrumts entitiemnts Other Total
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s
Consolidated only

Balance as at 1 April 2016 (55,526) - 1,761 (5,266) {569,031)
Charged to profit/(loss) ) - 219 953 1,166

Charged lo other comprehensive income 201 - - - 201
Balance as ot 31 March 2017 (55,331) - 1,980 (4,313) (57,664}
Balance as at 1 April 2015 (54,662) 5 2,245 (4,984) (67,401)
Charged to profit/(loss) (1,175) - (484) (282) (1,941)

Charged to other comprehensive income 311 - - - 311
(55,5286) . 1,761 (5,266) (59,031)

Balance as at 31 March 2016

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these assets approximates its

fair value,
Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Bank 2,512 2,160 475 621
Cash on hand 4 8 . -
2,516 2,168 475 621
12 Trade and other receivables
Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Trade and other receivables 37,405 36,694 5,059 5,105
Less provision for impairment (350) 91) - -
Prepayments 974 973 7 3
38,029 37,576 5,066 5,108

Due to the short term nature of these receivables the camying value of receivables approximates their fair value
special purpose entities.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the fair value of receivables. Collateral is nol held as securily, nor is the Group's policy to transfer {on-sell) receivables to

As at 31 March 2017 the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2017 2018
Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s
Trust
0-30 days 5,059 = 5,059 1 - 1
31-60 days - - 5,000 - 5,000
61 - 90 days - + = - =
91 days plus - - - 104 - 104
5,059 - 5,059 5,106 - 5,105
Consolidated
0-30 days 35,908 = 35,908 34,907 - 34,907
31- 60 days 442 . 442 488 - 488
61 - 90 days 502 - 502 388 - 388
91 days plus 553 (350) 203 911 (91) 820
37,405 (350) 37,055 36,694 (91) 36,603
The provision for impairmenl has been calculated based on incurred losses for Northpower's pool of debtors. incurred losses have been determined by review of specific debtors.
Other balances within trade and other receivables do not contain assets and are not past due. It is expected thal these other balances will be received when due
The carrying amount of receivables Lhat are past due, but not impaired, whose terms have been renegoliated is $197k (2016: $821k).
Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
$000s $000s
Consolidated only
Balance at 1 April 91 50
Additional provisions made during lhe year 259 41
Reversal of provision during the year - -
Balance at 31 March 350 91
ASSURANCE BDO

Page 20



13 Work in progress

Notes to the financial statements

Consolidaled

2017 2016
$000s $000s

Consolidated only
Customer progress billing made during the year (65,682) (109,996)
Aggregale of costs incurred 74,638 93,289
Recognised profits (less recognised losses) to date 17,622 39,807
26,578 23,100

14 Other financial assets
Consolidated

2017 2016
$000s $000s

Consolidated only
Fonterra Co-operalive Group Limited 851 833
Ravensdown Fertiliser Co-operative Limiled 32 az
883 865

The available for sale financial assets consists of 140,439 shares (2016: 140,439 shares) in Fonterra Co-operative Group Limited and 31,612 shares (2016: 31,612) in Ravensdown Fertiliser Co-

operative Limited

Shares held in Ravensdown Fertiliser Co-operalive Limited are unlisled. The fair value of these shares is provided by Ravensdown Fertiliser Co-operative Limited. Fonterra shares are listed - the
fair value of these shares was the closing price reported on the NZX far the lasl lrading day in March.

The maximum exposure (o credil risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the above investmenis

All the above invesiments are denominaled in New Zealand dollars. As a result lhere is no exposure to foreign currency risk

15 Investment in subsidiaries

Shares at cosl - Northpower Limited

Trust
2017 2016
$000s $000s
35,989 35,989

In previous years an allowance for impairment was made in relation to Northpower Limited's investment in Northpower Westemn Ausiralia Pty Limited, after an independenl review by KordaMentha

As oullined above in note 7, the Directors have resolved lo close the West Coasl Energy business. A forecasl of the realisable vaiue of net assets associated with lhe business, combined wilh the
anticipaled closure cosis, indicate that the Company's investment in Northpower Weslemn Australia Ply Limited is fully impaired, Furthermore, the Company does not expect recovery of the
advances outstanding al year so has also fully provided for lhese balances. As a resull an impairment of $17,371k (2016: nil) was recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The separale financial slatements of Norihpower Western Australia Pty Limited (NPWA) have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company will continue lo provide acouslic testing

services however, the ability of NPWA o continue operating viably is conditional on the conlinued support of its ullimale New Zealand parenl, Northpower Limited

Accordingly, no adjusimenls have been made on the separate financial statements of NPWA in relation to the measurement and classification of ils asseis and liabilities that may have been
necessary if NPWA was determined to be unable to continue as a going concern,

Subsidiary

Northpower Limiled

Wesl Coast Energy Pty Limiled
Northpower Western Australia Pty Limiled
Northpower Solulions Limiled

Northpower LFC2 Limited

Country of Balance shaot nterest held at 31 March

Principal Activity Incorporation date
Electricity transmission and contracting New Zealand 31 March
Electricity contracting Auslralia 31 March
Intermediate holding company Auslralia 31 March
Electricity Contracting New Zealand 31 March
Fibre Telecommunications New Zealand 31 March
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2017
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Interest held at 31 March 2016
100%

100%

100%

N/A

N/A
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16 Goodwill and intangible assets

intangible assets acquired separalely or in a business combination are inilially measured al cost. The cost of an intangible assel acquired in a business combination is iis fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cosl less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairmentl losses. Intemally generaled inlangible assets,
excluding developmenl cosls, are nol capilalised and expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred

Inlangible assets are assessed to be have either finite or indefinite useful lives. Intangible assets with finite lives are amoriised over the useful iife and tested for impairment whenever there is
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired

The amortisation period and the amortisation melhod for an intangible assel with a finite useful life are reviewed al least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattemn of consumption of future economic benefil embodied in the asset are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation period or melhod, as appropriate, which is a change
in accounting estimate. The amortisation expense of intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the expense calegory consistent with the function of the intangible assel

Intangible assets wilh indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or al the cash-generating unit level, Such inlangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible assel with an indefinite life is reviewed each reporling period lo delermine whether indefinite life assessmenl conlinues to be supportable. If not, lhe change in useful life assessment from
indefinite to finile is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate and is thus accounted for on a prospective basis

Software cosls have a finile useful life and are amortised over a period of expected future benefit of 5 - 10 years on a straight line basis

Easements are deemed lo have an indefinite life because there is no expiry dale to the easement agreemenls and Northpower is expected lo use the easements indefinitely, based on past
experience.

Consolidated only

Goodwill ~ Software Easements Total
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Cosl
At 1 April 2016 4,122 16,950 453 21,525
Addilion - 1,280 - 1,280
At 31 March 2017 4,122 18,230 453 22,805
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment
Al 1 April 2016 1,745 6,907 - 8,652
Amortisation for the year - 1,936 - 1,936
At 31 March 2017 1,745 8,843 - 10,588
Net carrying amount at 31 March 2017 2317 9,387 453 12,217
Cost
Al 1 April 2015 4,122 8,111 453 12,686
Addition - 8,839 E 8,839
Disposal - - - -
At 31 March 2016 4,122 16,950 453 21,525
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment
At 1 April 2015 1,745 5,241 - 6,986
Amortisation for tha year - 1,666 - 1,666
Impairment - B -
Disposal - -
At 31 March 2016 1.745 8,907 - 8,852
2,377 10,043 453 12,873

Net carrying amount at 31 March 2016

There is no intangible asset whose tille is restricted
a Allocation of goodwill to cash generating units

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generaling units, being the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows thal are largely independent of the cash inflows from olher
groups of assets. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured al cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is nol amortised but is subject to impairment testing on an
annual basis or whenever lhere is an indicator of impairment,

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to three cash generating unils ('CGUs') for impairment testing as follows:

Australian Contracling - The recoverable amount has been delermined based on a value in use calculalion using cash flow projections based on five year cash flow projections and sirategic
business plans approved by the Board of Direclors. Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using terminal value growlh rate lhal assumes zero real growth wilh nominal growth rate
al lhe rate of inflation. In performing lhe value in use calculation, lhe Group has applied a post-tax discount rale of 11.2% (2016: 11.2%) to discount the forecast future atiribulable post-lax cash

flows

Regional Contracling - Is Northpower's North island contracting area excluding Central and Auckland. The recoverable amount has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts covering a five year period, For modelling purposes, a growth rate of 2% (2018: 2%) is used. The pre-lax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
is 11.3% (2016: 11.3%).

Cenlral Contracting - Is Northpower's Central North Island contracting area, The recoverable amounl has been delermined based on a value in use calculalion using cash flow projections based on
financial forecasts covering a five year period. For modelling purposes, a growlth rale of 2% (2016: 2%) is used. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projeclions is 11.3% (2016: 11.3%)

b Impairment
As oullined in note 7 the Board has approved a significant restructure of lhe Australian operation. As such, the Group has wrilten down Lhe value of lhese assets lo their estimated recoverable

amount (see note 7)
Consolidaled only

¢ Carrying value of goodwill allocated to each group of cash generating units 2017 2016
$000s $000s

Auslralian Contracting

Regional Cenlracling 877 877
Central Contracting 1,500 1,500
2,377 2,377

BDO Northiand
ASSURANCE B
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d The calculation of value in use in for cash g ing units
The calculation of value in use in calculations for all CGUs is most sensitive to lhe following assumptions:

- Gross Margin

- Discount Rales

- Growth Rales,

Gross margins are based on the expected results as per next year's budget and future years' forecasts
Discount rates are based on Northpower's intemnal relurn on investment hurdle rale

e Sensitivity

The Directors have considered the variabilily of lhe key assumplions underlining the carrying amounts for lhe intangible assets set out above. The Directors believe that the range of reasonable
variability would nol cause a material change in lhese camying amounis.

17 Property, plant and equipment

Distribution system assets

Distribution system assels are stated in the balance sheel at their revalued amounts, being lhe fair value at the date of valuation, less any subsequenl accumulaled depreciation and subsequent
accumulaled impairment loss. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularily such that lhe carrying amount does nol differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at
balance sheet date. Additions between revaluations are recorded al cost.

Depreciation on revalued network assets is charged lo profit or loss in the comprehensive income stalement

Land, buildings and building infrastructure

Land and buildings held for use in the production of supply of goods and services, or for adminisirative purposes, are slaled in the balance sheet al lheir revalued amount, being the fair value at the
date of valuation, less any subsequenl accumulated deprecialion and subsequenl accumulated impairment loss. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such hal the carrying amount
does nol differ malerially from that which would be delermined using fair values at balance sheet date. Additions between revalualions are recorded al cost

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to profit or loss in the comprehensive income statement

No depreciation is charged on land

Other classifications of property, plant and equipment
Olher classifications of properly, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulaled impairmentl losses

The cost of purchased property, plant and equipment is the value of the consideration given to acquire the assets and the value of other directly allributable costs which have been incurred in
bringing Ihe assets lo the localion and condition necessary for their intended service

The cosl of assels construcled by lhe Group includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on lhe project and an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Costs cease
to be capitalised as soon as the asset is ready for produclive use. Repairs and maintenance are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred

Revaluation increment and decrement
Any revaluation increment is recorded in olher comprehensive income and crediled to he assel revaluation reserve in equity, except to the extent lhat il reverses a revaluation decrement for the

same asset previously recognised in the profit or loss, in which case the increment is recognised in the profit or loss

Any revaluation decrement is recognised in profil or loss, except to the extenl thal it offsets a previous revaluation increment for lhe same asset, in which case the decrement is debited direclly to
{he asset revalualion reserve to the extent of lhe credit balance existing in lhe revaluation reserve for that asset

Depreciation
Deprecialion is charged on a straight line basis so as lo write off the cost or valuation of the fixed assels to {heir estimated residual value over lheir expected economic lives. The estimated
economic lives are as follows:

Dislribution syslem 5 - 70 years
Generation 5 - 50 years
Metars 4 yoars
Fibre Assats 10 - 50 years
Buildings - frea hold 10 - 50 years
Buildings - infraslructure 10 - 20 years
Leasehold improvemenls 2- 20 years
Motor vehiclas 5 - 15 years
Plant & equipment 3 - 20 years

The assels' residual values, useful lives and amorlisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted il appropriate, at each financial year end
Disposal
An item of property, pfant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expecled from its use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on lhe

derecognilion of an assel (calculated as lhe difference belween the net disposal proceeds and ihe carrying amounl of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in lhe year the asset is
derecognised. Upon disposal or derecognilion any revalualion reserve relaling to ihe particular assel being sold is transferred to retained earnings

BDO Northland
ASSURANCE BDO
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Fixed Assets

Freehld Freehld Blding Lhold Distribtn Meters Fibre Generation Plant & Motor Vehicles Total
Land Buildings Infra Improve Systms Equipmt
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s

Consolidated only
Cost or fair value
Al 1 April 2016 13,429 11,224 5,603 - 306,491 5113 2,337 15,141 40,343 52,914 452,595
Addition . 74 193 84 11,064 296 37 289 3,265 525 15,827
Transfers - (421) (2,204) 2,625 - - - - - - -
Transfer to availabie for sale (495) (674) (316)  (1,083) - - - - (3.299) (17,827) (23,644)
Disposal (5,270) (2,771) (912) . 41 (5) . - (898) (6,714) (16,611)
Foreign exchange differences - - - (45) - - - - (1,231) (1,624) (2,900)
At 31 March 2017 7,664 7,432 2,364 1,631 317,514 5,404 2,374 15,430 38,180 27,274 425,267
Acc Depreciation & Impairment
Al 1 April 2016 - 92 507 - 36,711 4,113 811 8,258 28,163 31,873 110,628
Deprecialion charge for the year - 273 274 128 7,036 586 209 531 2,792 4,117 15,946
Impairment B - - 765 - - . 887 3,294 4,946
Transfers . (92) (5585) 647 . . . . - . .
Transfer to available for sale - {16) @2n (1,033) - - - (3,098) (14,494) (18,662)
Disposal . (58) a1 . 4) 1) . . (860) (5,006) (6.040)
Foreign exchange differences - - - {57) - - - - (1,246) (1,249) {2,552)
At 31 March 2017 - 199 94 450 43,743 4,698 1,020 8,769 26,638 18,635 104,266
Net carrying amount at 31 March 2017 7,664 7,233 2,270 1,181 273,771 706 1,354 6,641 11,542 8,639 321,001
Cost or fair value
At 1 April 2015 11,996 12,470 6,817 - 286,094 4,902 2,307 14,209 38,208 60,573 437,576
Addilion 230 897 856 - 20,409 211 100 932 2,635 918 27,188
Acquisitions through irade purchases - - - - - - - - B . -
Transfers - - 71 - . - (70) . a E 1
Revaluation adjustment 1,203 (2,143) (2,196) - - - - - E - (3,136)
Disposal - - (26) . (12) . . - (746) (10,107) (10,891)
Foreign exchange differences - - 81 - - - - - 246 1,530 1,857
At 31 March 2016 13,429 11,224 5,603 = 306,491 5,113 2,337 15,141 40,343 52,914 452,595
Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment
At 1 April 2015 - 1,636 1,514 - 30,116 2,919 603 7,756 25,246 33,595 103,385
Depreciation charge for the year - 240 412 - 6,595 1.194 208 502 3,036 5,046 17,233
Transfers - - - - = . Q)] %))
Impairmenl - - 10 - - . - 20 131 161
Revaluation adjustment - (1,784) (1,443) - - - - - (3,227)
Disposal - - - - - - - - (281) (7,285) (7,576)
Foreign exchange differences - - 13 - - - 143 496 652
At 31 March 2016 - 92 506 - 36,711 4113 811 8,258 28,163 31,973 110,627
Net carrying amount at 31 March 2016 13,429 11,132 5,097 - 269,780 1,000 1,528 6,883 12,180 20,941 341,968

There are no items of property, plant and equipment whose title is restricted
Revaluation of distribution system

The Group engaged PriceWalerhouseCoopers, an independent registered valuer, to delermine the fair value of its disiribulion system assets as at 31 March 2016. As the fair value of the assets
was nol able to be reliably determined using marke!-based sevidence, the valualion was prepared using a discounled cash low meihodology.

The key inputs used in the valuation included the forecast of future line charges, volumes, projected operational and capilal expenditures growlh rates and discount rale. A sensitivity analysis of lhe
major inputs used in the valuation is discussed in delail in note 4

The valuers estimated a range of values atlribulable lo the Group's distribution system assels was between $256 5 million and $275.9 million as at 31 March 2016. The carrying value of the
dislribution system is within the range of estimated fair values as a result of the valuation exercise. Accordingly, no revaluation adjusimenls were recognised as lhe carrying value of the distribution

system did nol differ malerially from ils fair vaiue

Revaluation of land and building

The Group engaged AON Risk Solulions, a registered independent valuer, to delermine the [air value of its land and buildings as at 31 March 2016. Fair value is determined by direct reference lo
recent market transactions on arm’s lenglh terms. Fair value is assessed wilh reference to lhe "highest & besl use" being defined as "the most probable use of an asset thal is physically possible,
appropriately justified, legally permissible, financially feasible and results in the highest value”. As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of lhe land and buildings amounted lo $13 42 million and $16.1

million, respeclively.

The valuation of land and buildings was carried out in accordance wilh International Valuation Standards. To eslablish the valualion of properties, the valuers used a combinalion of income
capitalisation, market comparison and depreciated replacement cosl approaches

The carrying value lhat would have been recognised had the following revalued assets been carried under lhe cost model would be as follows:

Freehold  Freehold Building Distribution

Land  Buildings Infrastruclure System

Consolidated only $000s $000s $000s $000s
2017

Cost 6,661 10,458 3,156 294,896

Accumulated depreciation & impaimment - 3,793 1,485 70,179

Nel carrying amount 6,661 6,665 1,691 224717
2016

Cosl 10,829 14,269 2,954 283,944

Accumulated depreciation & impairment 3,980 732 63,305

Nel carrying amount 10,829 10,289 2222 220,639
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18 Investment Property

Properties leased to lhird parlies under operating leases are classified as investment property uniess the property is held to meet service delivery objectives, rather than to eam renlals or for capilal
appreciation

Properly held to meel service delivery objectives is classified as property, planl and equipmentl

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including lransaclion costs. Subsequent lo initial recognition, investment properlies are slaled at fair value, which is based on market prices
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of invesimenl property are recognised in profit or loss in the comprehensive income statement in the year in which they arise

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanenlly withdrawn from use and no future economic benefil is expected
from its disposal Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investmenl property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal

Transfers are made lo investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to a third party.

Group
2017 20186
$000s $000s

Consolidated only

Opening balance as at 1 April 4,672 3,924
Additions - 735
Transfer lo held for sale (3,937) -
Nel gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments - 13

735 4,672

During lhe period invesimenl properties generated revenue of $380k {2016: 202k) and had operating expenses of $177k (2016: $115k)

The investment properties are carried al fair value, which has been determined by an independenl valuer, AON Risk Solutions, during lhe year.

The fair value of lhe investment properly reflecls market condilions at the end of the reparting period

There are no conlraclual capital obligations

19 Borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of lhe consideration received less direclly attributable transaction costs.

Aller inilial recognilion, inlerest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest melhod. Fees paid on lhe establishment of loan facilities that
are yield related are included as parl of the carrying amount of the loans and borrowings

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional righl {o defer settlemenl of the fiability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet dale

Capitalised Borrowing Costs

Capilalised borrowing cosls that are directiy attributable to lhe acquisilion, conslruclion or produclion of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily lake a subslanlial period of time (o gel
ready for their intended use or sale, are added o the cosl of those assels, unlil such time as the assets are substanlially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on lhe
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation . Borrowing costs consist of inleresl and
olher cosis that an entily incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds

2017 2016
Consolidated only Malurity $000s $000s
Current
Finance lease liability - 809
Total current portion - 809
Non Current
Finance lease liability - 732
Unsecured loans Wilhin 2 yrs 22,000 47,000
Within 2 & 3 yrs 57,900 43,800
Total non current portion 79,900 91,532

79,900 92,341

a. Fair Values
The carrying amount of borrowings repayable within one year approximales their fair value.

b. Terms and Conditions

Banh overdrafts and loans
The Group operates non current lending facilities expiring between August 2018 and August 2020

Interest rates paid on $NZD borrowings averaged 2.7% (2016: 3.7%). Interest rates paid on $AUD borrowings averaged 7.3% (2016: 4 62%)

¢, Fi ing Facilities A
The Group operates a $107 million lending facility

There is also an additional $1 million credit card facility
d. Assets Pledged as Security

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the underlying assets

Security held by the bank is in lhe form of a negalive pledge deed, where an undertaking has been given that certain aclions will not be undertaken and key financial ratios will be maintained

¢, Set-off Assets and Liabilities
The Group has eslablished a legal righl of sel-off with a bank enabling it to set off certain deposils with lhat bank against an overdraft.

f. Interest Rate Risk
Refer to lhe Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

BDO Northland
ASSURANCE BpO
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g. Debt to Equity Ratio
The Group's debt to equily ratio is 0 82 (2016: 0 77)

2017 2016
$000s $000s

Consolidated only

Minimum lease payments payable

Not later than one year

Later than one year & not laler than five years
Later than five years

Total minimum |ease payments 1,198 1,669
Fulure finance charges {58) (130)

508 856
690 813

Present value of minimum lease payments 1,140 1,539

The finance leases are disclosed as liabilities direclly associated wilh assets held for sale al 31 March 2017

The Group has enlered into finance leases for motor vehicles and the net camying amount of these assels al balance dale are $4.642 million (2016: $5.831 million). The ieases can be renewed at
the Group's option, with renls set by reference to current market rates for itams of equivalent age and condition. The Group has the option lo purchase the asset al the end of the lease larm. There
are no restriclions placed on the Group by any of the finance leasing arangements. These assets are disclosed as held for sale at 31 March 2017

20 Trade and other payables, and WCE closure provisions

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised when lhe Group become obligated to make future payments resulling from purchases of goods and services

Trade payables are nol discounted given their shorl lerm nature

Consolidaled Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Trade payables (GST Inclusive) 17,840 18,959 25 22
Accrued payables (GST Exclusive) 7,111 3,803 - -
Income in advance 6,772 5,385 - -
31,723 28,147 25 22

Due to the short lerm nalure of these payables, their carrying value is assumed (o approximate their fair value

WCE closure provisions
Following lhe Board's decision to not rebid for volumes under the contracts heid with Weslemn Power Pty Limited, a provision has been made at 31 March 2017 for all expecled reslrucluring costs

These costs are included in discontinued operations in the comprehensive income slatemenl and a breakdown of the provision is provided below.

Group Trusl

2017 2016 2017 2016

$000s $000s $000s $000s
Redundancies and other employment costs 2,580 = - &
Onerous lease costs 3,381 “ s -
Onerous conlract costs 3,490 - - -
Operating lease costs 210 - = g
Claims and defecls 328 = . a
Other closure costs 705 = - =
10,694 - - -

21 Distributions paid to consumer beneficiaries

The Trust paid a dislribution via Northpower Limited to its consumer beneficiaries amounting to $4.493m (2016: $2 775m) during lhe year

22 Trust capital

Share Capital

Share capital consists of ordinary shares which are classified as equity. Incremental cosls directly atlributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trust capital
The Trust capital was paid by Northpower Limited conlemporaneously upon execution of the Trust Deed execuled 29th of March 1993

Asset Revaluation Reserve
The asset revalualion reserve is used to record the increments and decrements in the fair value of property, planl and equipment identified as being carried at valuation
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

The forsign currency translation reserve is used o record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries

Other Reserves
The other reserve is used lo record movements in the fair value of other financial assets and derivative movements recognised in other comprehensive income

BDO Northland
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a. Trust capital

Group Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Trust capital 35,989 35,989 35,989 35,989
on settlement - 29 March 1993
Total issued & paid up capilal 35,989 35,989 35,989 35,989

b. Capital management

The Company considers the following as part of its capital shares, reserves and relained eamings. When managing capital, the Board's objective is to ensure he entily continues as a going
concem maintaining adequala working capilal, ensuring obligations can be met on lime, as well as maintaining retumns to shareholders as set oul in {he statement of corporate intent

For the year ended 31 March 2017 Northpower Limiled declared dividends of $5 million (2016: $5 million). As outiined in Northpower Limited's Slatemenl of Corporate Intenl, the Group's dividend
policy is lo pay a minimum of $5m or 35% of net profil afier lax (whichever lhe greater) as a dividend

Northpower Limiled's Slalement of Corporale Intent prescribes lhat the ratio of total shareholders’ funds Lo lolal assels will be maintained at nol less than 50%.

23 Cash flow statement reconciliation

Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016

$000s $000s $000s $000s
Reconciliation of net profil after tax to net cash flows from operations
Net profil after income tax (3,010} 9,208 4,368 4,637
Adjuslments for:
- Deprecialion & amortisation 22,827 18,839 -
- Gain on sale of property, planl & equipment (2,066) (73) - -
= Non cash line contribulion revanus (2,643) (1,977) -
- Fair valuation (gain)/ loss on derivative financial inslruments (1,416} 2,905 -
- Capitalised interest expense (22) (264) -
- Unrealised foreign currency gain - (176) -
- Revaluation of invesiment properties - (13) - -
- Equity accounled eamings of associate nel of dividends received 1,074 368 - -
Changes in assets & liabililies
- Increase (decrease) in trade & other payables 3,471 (3,269) 3 )
- Increase in WCE closure provisions 10,694 - - -
- (Increase/)Decrease in work in progress {3,478) 621 - -
- Decrease in tax refund (66) 1,697 (686) 129
- (Increase)/decrease in lrade & other receivables (395) 2711 (4) (1,996)
- (Increase)/decrease in inventory (6) (1,279) - -
- (Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabililies {1,166) 1,630 -
- Increase/ (decrease) in employee entitlements 769 (1,758) = -
- Increase in provision for tax 5,583 153 - .
Net cash from operaling activities 30,150 29,323 4,301 2,763

24 Derivative financial instruments

Derivalive financiat instruments are used by lhe Group in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposure to fluctuations in inlerest rates.

2017 2016
Consolidated only $000s $000s
Non-current asset portion
Interest rale swap conlracts 72 -
Current liability portion
Interest rate swap contracts - 64
Non-current liability portion
Interest rate swap contracls 2,200 3,614
Net financial derivative liability position 2,128 3,578

Interest rate swaps

The fair values of inleresl rate swaps have been determined by calculating the expecled cash flows under the lerms of the swaps and discounling these values to present value. The inputs into the
valuation model are independenlly sourced market parameters such as interest rate yield curves. Most market paramelers are implied from inslrument prices

The notional value of the outstanding interesl rale swap contracts amounted to $88 million (2016: $93 million). The fixed inlerest rates of interest rale swaps vary from 2.67% lo 4.65% (2016: 2.8%
to 4.65%)
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25 Guarantees and Contingencies

Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Performance bonds in relation to cantract work 20,463 18,802 - -
Letlers of credit in relation to contract work 150 152 - -
Guarantee for leased premises 1,052 1,054 - -
21,665 20,108 - .

Performance bonds relate to guaranless given to cuslomers to guarantee completion of contracting work both in New Zealand and Australia. Northpower has enlered into an FRA with ANZ. This is
a commitment to make one inlerest rale payment and receive another at a future date. Letlers of Credit reiate to guarantees given to off-shore customers for work completed. No liability was
recognised in relation to the above guarantees as the fair value is considered immalerial.

Northpower is a participant in the DBP Contributors Scheme (lhe scheme) which is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme operated by National Provident Fund, If the other participating
employers ceased to participate in the scheme, Northpower could be responsible for the entire deficit of the scheme (see note 30). Similarly, if a number of employers ceased to parlicipate in the
scheme, Norlhpower could be responsible for an increased share of lhe deficil

The subsidiary Northpower Limiled has commilted to provide any necessary financial support to enable ils subsidiary, Norihpower Westemn Australia Pty Limited to continue as a going concem. As
part of this ongoing support, guarantees under the name of lhe subsidiary have been included in the Northpower Limiled company disclosures above.

26 Commitment

As lessee in operating leases

The Group leases properly, plant & equipment in the normal course of business. The future aggregate minimum lease payments payable under non-car operating leases are as follows:
Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Within one year 8,160 5,688 - -
After one year bul nol more than five years 25,126 17,040 - -
10,745 6,502 - -

More than five years

Total non-cancellable operating leases 44,031 29,230 -

As lessor in operating leases

The future aggregale minimum lease paymenits to be coll d under non-cancellable operaling leases are as follows:

Within one year 23 23 - -

After one year bul nol more than five years 76 81 - -

More than five years - 14 - i
99 118 - -

Totai non-cancellable operating leases

No conlingent rents have been recognised during the period

Capilal commitments contracted for at balance sheet dale

Northpower is a party to cerlain options contracts which, when exercised, will require Northpower to purchase A shares in Northpower Fibre Ltd from Crown Fibre Holdings. As at balance date, the
exercise of these options is considered to be unlikely since the condilions Ihat trigger them have not been met. Furthermore, lhe value of lhese options is assessed lo be not significant since ils
exercise price is equivalent lo the market price on exercise date

27 Related parties
a. Subsidiaries
i Terms and Conditions

Northpower Limited pays a dividend Lo the Trust

Outstanding Balances
Outstanding balances at year end are unsecured, interest free and settlemenl occurs in cash

Trust
2017 2016
$000s $000s
Transaclions during lhe year
Dividends income from Northpower Limited 5000 5000
Qulslanding balances as al 31 March
Receivable from Northpower Limited 5058 5104
b. Associates
Transactions during the year
Sales to associate 2,873 4,348
Purchases from associate 50 87
Dividend received from associate 1,826 625
Purchase of shares in associate 8,301 6,957
Other transactions - 221
Outstanding balances as at 31 March
Payable to associate - B
614 897

Receivable from associate

¢. Directors
Cerlain Direclors and key managemenl of Northpower are also directors of West Coast Energy Pty Limited, Northpower Weslem Auslralia Pty Limited Northpower Solutions Limiled and Northpower

LFC2 Limited
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d. Key Management
The compensation of ihe Direclors and Executives, being the key management personnel of the entity, is set out as below:

Comp ion of key g personnel
Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Short-lerm employee benefils 4,627 4,438 224 219
Termination benefits 490 - - -
5117 4,438 224 219

There are close family members of key management personnel employed by the Group. The lerms and condilions of these arrangements are no more favourable than the Group would otherwise
have adopted if there were no relalionships to key management personnel

Ti it b the and key g p

Mr Paul Yovich is a Truslee of Northpower Electric Power Trust. He is also a Truslee of a Shareholder of Busck Prestressed Concrete Limited. During the year Norlhpower made purchases from
Busck Prestressed Concrele Limited of $3,243,589 and had a balance oulslanding at 31 March 2017 of $29,260

Mr Anlhony Davies-Colley was a Trustee of Northpower until his retirement from this role in November 2016. He is also the Director of Blackdog Steelworks Ltd. During the year ended 31 March
2016 Northpower made sales 1o Blackdog Steelworks Ltd $2,345. His sister in law Nicole Davies-Colley is the Chairman of lhe Northpower Board

Mrs Nicole Davies-Colley is the Chairman of the Northpower Board and a Director of Farmlands Trading Sociely Limiled and Landcorp Farming Limiled. During the year Northpower made
purchases from Farmlands Trading (o the value of $21,012 (2016: $27,523), and sales to Landcorp Farming of $6,152 (2016: $176) wilh a balance remaining at 31 March 2017 of $6,133

For the period from 1 January until 31 March, two directors, Nikki Davies-Colley and Mark Trigg undertook executive responsibilities and became Managing Director and Executive Director
respectively. The purpose was to bolster the executive team through the Iransition period between the retirement of bolh the incumbent Chief Executive and lhe General Manager Nelworks and the
commencement of a replacement CEO. That arrangement will conlinue until 31 July 2017, the starling date of the new Chief Execulive. The total remuneration received as executives during thal
period was: Ms Davies-Colley $69,526 and Mr Trigg $80,937

Messrs Lloyd Richards and Richard Pearce are Board members of lhe Electricity Engineers Association and during the year Northpower made purchases from this organisation totalling $36,494
(2016: $76,406) and made sales of nil (2016: $2,874).

Mr Richard Booth was the commissioner of the Kaipara District Council for part of the year and Chairman of the Delta Produce Co-op Limiled. During the year Kaipara Dislrict Council made
purchases of $22,933 (2016: $45,640). Northpower made sales to Kaipara District Council of $50,564 (2016: $102,895) and had a balance outstanding at 31 March 2017 of $10,642

David Wright is a Director of WEL Networks Limited and David Wright Limited. During the year Norlhpower transacted purchases of $1,185 (2016: $10,583) with WEL Networks Limited and $nil
(2016: $77,596) with David Wright Limiled Sales to WEL Networks of $3,006 004 (2016: $1,520,863) look piace during the year wilh $6875,524 remaining outstanding as al 31 March 2017 (2016:
$1,947)

Mark Galland was a Board member of the Energy Nelworks’ Assaciation unlil his relirement in January 2017. During the year Northpower made paymenls to this organisation of $77,450 (2016:
$77.450)

No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised for impairmment of receivables from relaled parties

28 Investments in associates

The Group's investment in its associates is accounled for using the equily method. The associates are enlities over which the Group has significant influence and that are neither subsidiaries nor
joini ventures

Under the equily method, investments in associales are carried in lhe consolidated balance sheet al cosl plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associales
Goodwill relating to an associate is included in Lhe carrying amount of the inveslment and is not amorlised. After applicalion of the equity method, the Group delermines whether il is necessary to
recognise any impairment loss wilh respect to the Group's nel invesiment in associates, measured as lhe difference between lhe recoverable amount of the net invesiment in the associate and ils
carrying value. Any impairment loss is recognised in the "share of profit of an associate" in lhe slalement of comprehensive income

The Group's share of associates' profils or losses is recognised in profit or loss, and its share of movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehsnsive income, The
cumulative movements are adjusted againsl lhe carrying amount of the invesiment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds ils interest in the associale, including any
unsecured ong-lerm receivables and loans, the Group does not recognise furlher losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of lhe associale

The associales' accounting palicies conform to those used by the Group for like transaclions and events in similar circumstances. When there are differences in the reporting dates and accounting
policies, appropriate adjustments are made in the financial slatements of lhe associale prior to the application of lhe equity method of accounting. If Ihe difference in the reporling dates between the
Group and lhe associate is longer lhan three months, financial statements for lhe associates are prepared as al lhe reporting date of the Group prior lo the applicalion of the equity method of
accounting

Northpower Fibre Limited (NFL) has been established to construcl and operate an ultra-fast broadband (UFB) network in the Whangarei area, as part of the Government’s objective to roll oul UFB
to 75% of the New Zealand population over len years, Northpower has parinered with Crown Fibre Holdings Limiled (CFH) to establish, manage and fund ihe operations of NFL. Under a
shareholders' agreement belween Northpower and CFH, Norlhpower's obligation during the initial ten year periad includes:

a) provide working capital to NFL in return for shares

b) purchase shares in NFL from CFH, as and when end users are connected to lhe UFB network

¢) participate in the governance and management of NFL, including the appoiniment of two Directors to the Board of NFL and the provision of
management services lo NFL

a. Movements in the carrying amount of the Group's investment in associates

2017 2016
Consolidated only $000s $000s
Beginning balance 16,634 10,045
Additional investiment made 8,301 6,957
Share of profit/ {loss) after income lax 212 (272)
Unrealised profil adjustment 596 {110)
Realised profit adjustment (56) 14
Dividend {1,826)

23,861 16,634
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b. Summarised financial information
Exltracts from the associate statement of financial posilion:

2017 2016
$000s $000s
Current assets 1,617 1,239
Non-current assels 41,401 36,819
Current liabilities 1,145 581
Non-current liabilies 1,187 803
Net assels 40,686 36,674
Share of associates’ nel assets 23,476 16,870
Extract from the associates' statemenl of comprehensive income:
Revenue 5,450 3,859
Net profit/(loss) 367 (590)
29 Categories of other financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amount of financial assets and liabililies in each of the NZ IFRS 9 calegories is as follows:
Consolidated Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
$000s $000s $000s $000s
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 72 - -
Fi ial assets at rtisad cost
Cash & cash equivalenls 2,516 2,168 475 621
Trade & other receivables 38,029 37,576 5,066 5,108
Total financial assets at amortised cost 40,545 39,744 5,541 5,729
Other financial assets at FVTOCI
Unlisled shares 883 865 - -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 2,200 3,578 -
Fi ial liabilities ed at amortised cost
Shorl lerm borrowings - 809 -
Long term borrowings 79,900 91,532 - .
Trade & other payables 22,758 21,968 22 22
102,658 114,309 22 22

Total fi ial liabiliti d at amortised cost

30 Defined benefit superannuation scheme

Northpower conlribules to a multi-employer defined superannuation scheme operated by National Provident Fund. The scheme is not open lo new members and currently only two employees are

members of lhe scheme

Insufficient information is available to use defined benefil accounting as il is not possible to delermine, from the terms of the scheme, the extenl lo which lhe deficit will affect fulure contributions by

employers, as lhere is no prescribed basis for allocation

The actuarial examination as at 31 March 2016 indicated that the scheme had a past service surplus of $11 7 million (7.4% of the total liabilities). This amount is exclusive of Employer
Superannuation Contribution Tax, This surplus was calculaled using a discount rate equal to the expected return on the assets, but otherwise lhe assumptions and methadology were consistent

with Lhe requirements of NZ IAS 19

31 Employee entitlements

Provision is made for benefils accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, long service leave and sick leave when it is probable (hal settlement will be required and they

are capable of being measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits including accumuiating sick leave expected to be settled within 12 monlhs of the reporling date are recognised in respecl of employees’ services
up (o the reporling date. They are measured at their nominal values using the remuneralion rate expecled al the time of seltlement Expenses for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when

lhe leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable

Provisions made in respecl of employee benefits 1hat are not expected to be seliled within 12 months are measured as lhe present value of the eslimaled fulure cash outflows to be made by the
Group in respect of services provided by employees up to balance sheel date. Conlribulions to defined contribution superannualion plans are expensed when incurred

Consolidated only

Current employee entitl are rep d by:
Accrued salanes & wages

Annual leave

Sick leave

Consolidaled
2017 2016
$000s $000s

Total current portion

N Tent employee entitl are rep d by:
Retirement & long service leave

2,505 1,120
6,825 7,359
25 25
9,355 8,505
851 932
851 932

Total non-current portion

Total employee entitlements
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Tel: +64 9 430 0471 BDO NORTHLAND
Fax: +64 9 430 0671 49 John Street
northland@bdo.co.nz PO Box 448, Whangarei 0140

www.bdo.co.nz New Zealand

Kerikeri Office
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Tel: +64 9 407 7250
TO THE BENEFICIARIES OF NORTHPOWER ELECTRIC POWER TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Northpower Electric Power Trust
(“the Trust”) and its subsidiary (together, “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated comprehensive income statement,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (“NZ
[FRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand)
(“ISAs (NZ)”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1
(Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

In addition to audit services, partners and employees of our firm may deal with the group on
normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the group. We
have no other relationship with, or interests in, the Trust or its subsidiary.

Other Information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directory, Trustees’ Report and Trustees’ Statement, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

PARTNERS:  Adelle Allbon Angela Edwards Scott Kennedy Robyn Terlesk

BDO New Zealand Ltd, a New Zealand limited liability company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms
part of the international BDO network of independent member firms, BDO New Zealand is a national association of independent member firms which operate

as separate legal entities. -32-
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Trustees’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Trustees are responsible on behalf of the Group for the preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS, and for such internal
control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Trustees are responsible on behalf of
the Group for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (NZ), we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by
the Trustees and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Trustees with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Who we Report to

This report is made solely to the Trust’s Beneficiaries, as a body. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s Beneficiaries, as
a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Adelle
Allbon.
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